
 

 

Bellows Falls Village Trustees Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, October 25, 2016 

 

Present:  Myles Mickle, Colin James, Stefan Golec, Evelyn Weeks, Steve Adams 

 

Also Present:  Willis Stearns, II, Municipal Manager; Kerry Bennett, Village Clerk; Chief Ron 

Lake, BFPD; Deborah Wright 

 

Press:  KMO, FACT8; Joel Slutsky, The Shopper; Susan Smallheer, Rutland Herald 

 

Call to Order:  Meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by President Myles Mickle. 

 

Additions to the Agenda for Routine Administrative Matters and/or Pressing Matters that will 

require ratification at a future meeting:  None 

 

Approve Minutes of October 11, 2016: Colin James made the motion to approve the minutes of 

October 11, 2016 as printed.  Motion was seconded by Steve Adams.  Motion passed. 

 

Public Comment on Items not on the Agenda: (3 minutes per person):  None 

 

Manager’s Report: 

 Leaf & Lawn Debris pick up will continue by the Rockingham Highway Department on 

Mondays & Fridays only through November 30 weather permitting.  Clear bags only, must 

be able to be handled by one individual.  Debris can also be taken to the Recycling Center. 

 The Parking Ban will go into effect on November 1 to April 1.  No overnight parking on any 

streets including the Villages of Bellows Falls and Saxtons River.  In addition, there will be 

no parking on the streets during a snow storm and 24 hours following a snow storm.  

Vehicles will be towed at owner’s expense with no warning. 

 Parking permits for overnight parking in municipal lots are available.  Cost is $40 per year.  

A guest pass is also available for $10 per month for non-residents.   

 Update on 25 Hapgood Street – Attorney Massucco will be contacting the bankruptcy court 

to find out what further steps can be taken.  Goal would be to obtain a quit claim deed from 

the property owner to the Village. 

 

Agenda: 

1. Police Department – Chief Ron Lake 

 a) Police Department Staffing:  Stearns stated that he is requesting that the Trustees approve 

the addition of a 10
th

 full time position to the Police Department.  Stearns also noted that 

the goal is to fill this position from within the part-time staff.  This will eliminate the 

need for scheduled overtime.  Lake stated that the scheduled overtime has been occurring 

since July when officers expressed a desire for 2 officers on at all times.  Lake further 

noted that the Union Contract states “24.1 The EMPLOYER will attempt to have two or 

more police officers on duty at all times for the safety of the officers and the security of 

the Bellows Falls Village Corporation.”   Lake has attempted to honor the officer’s 

request for 2 on at all times but current full time staffing has not allowed all shifts to be 

covered with 2 officers necessitating the need for overtime.  By adding this 10
th

 full-time  



 

 

Bellows Falls Trustees Meeting 

October 25, 2016 – Page 2 

 

position, this staffing will be done.   Golec asked if the current full time positions 

included him.  Lake stated that it did.  Stearns stated that also in union contract is a shift 

bidding process.  The next cycle will occur in November and if approved Lake will add 

this to the bidding sheets.  All board members stated that they supported the addition of a 

10
th

 full time position and liked the fact that the intention was to promote from within 

current employees, but did expect to see the overtime budget decrease.  Adams did state 

that he would like to see the projected net change for a full time officer vs scheduled 

overtime.  Stearns stated that a new full time position would be around $70,000 including 

benefits.  By moving a current part-time employee who is already on the payroll and is 

getting some benefits he expects the increase to be between $20,000 and $25,000 and the 

overtime to decrease.   Colin James made the motion to approve the increase in the 

Bellows Falls Police Department to a 10
th

 full-time position and authorized the 

Municipal Manager to move forward with the hiring process.  Motion was seconded by 

Evelyn Weeks.  Adams again stated that this seems like a reasonable solution and did note 

that the Board could only cut so much.  Adams stated that the Board should focus on 

increasing the revenue stream and would like to have this discussion prior to and during 

the budget process.  Deborah Wright stated that the Village now has a budget over $1 

million for the Police Department noting that this increase is going to cost the taxpayers 

more and there will still be overtime.  Wright also stated that there are similar size 

communities in Vermont that do not have this large a budget.   Mickle called for a vote 

on the motion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

  The Board then discussed briefly the communication issue that arose over the weekend 

with the radio system.  Lake stated that this occurred on Thursday at 9:30 pm and it is 

being worked on.  Adams asked about the service agreement for this equipment.  Stearns 

stated that there is no agreement and this company is used throughout the State and is an 

on-call service.  Adams asked that Stearns look into the possibility of a service agreement 

for this equipment. 

 

2. Updates 

 a) Water Project:  Stearns reported that Zaluzny cannot work after December 1 and they are 

working diligently to get the plastic piping from Pond Road to the Joy Wah connected to 

the new ductile pipe being placed in the south bound lane to the bottom of the hill.  That 

will be connected back to the AC line for the winter. The temporary lines will be 

removed.  Stearns noted that with the temperature dropping the temporary line will most 

likely not freeze but the connections to residences may and that this would not be the 

Water Department’s issue or responsibility.  Stearns also noted that there was a gravel 

bed issue on Route 5 following the rain over the weekend.  Both the Water Department 

and the Rockingham Highway Department were called in to repair the damage and the 

contractor will be billed for this. 

 

  



 

 

Bellows Falls Trustees Meeting 

October 25, 2016 – Page 3 

 

 b) Wastewater Project:  The contractors are moving rapidly to get the buildings buttoned up 

before winter and will then move to interior construction work.  All buildings have an 

emergency generator at this time.   

 

Mickle asked about the bidding for Hadley/Chase/Oak project.  Stearns stated that it is 

anticipated that this will go out to bid in February.  Stearns also noted that the Burt/Blake 

Street project is still under review and has not yet been approved. 

 

Overtime & Comp Time Reports:  No comments or concerns. 

 

Review Agenda Items for Next Regular Trustees Meeting – November 8, 2016: 

 FY2017 Budget Status 

 Radio Service Agreement 

 

Review Agenda Items for Joint Board Meeting – November 29, 2016:  No additions. 

 

Approve Orders, Bills and Warrants:  Stefan Golec made the motion to approve the orders, bills 

and warrants as presented.  Motion was seconded by Colin James.  Motion passed. 

 

Other Business: 

Stefan Golec stated that as a North Walpole firefighter he would like to thank the Bellows Falls 

Fire Department staff for attending the drill in North Walpole and felt it was a very positive 

experience. 

 

Executive Session:  No executive session was necessary. 

 

Adjourn:  Evelyn Weeks made the motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:25 p.m.  Motion was 

seconded by Colin James.  Motion passed. 

 

 

 

      Attest:         

       Kerry Bennett, Village Clerk 


